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The Foster-Armstrong House is a large farm house constructed in 
two sections. The original frame wing, built ca. the 1790's, is 
two stories high, and five bays wide. The siding is white clap­ 
board, and the gambrel roof with "Dutch kick" (flared eaves) is 
covered with asphalt shingles. The wing sits on a rubble sand­ 
stone foundation. A broad, one story porch runs the width of 
the wing. A wide brick chimney, with exposed back on the first 
floor level, is set in the north, or open, gable. A heavy 
panelled Dutch central entrance door, with a glazed transom, sits 
under the middle bay.

The south wing, built ca. 1812, is a one-and-a-half story kitchen 
addition of heavy cut rubble stone, covered on the exterior with 
rough stucco. The wing is covered with a steeply sloping seam 
metal roof, which extends over a porch on the front. There is a 
sloped addition in the rear of more recent date, and a small 
dormer in the front over the porch, slightly off center.

The interior of the frame section has eight rooms, flanking a 
central stairhall. Each room has a corner fireplace, many of 
which are boarded up, and original floorboards and chair rails 
remain throughout. The most prominent feature in the stone wing 
is a large beehive over, now boarded up.

The house is currently uninhabited, and the windows are boarded
to protect it against intruders. It is intended for eventual use
by the National Park Service as a staff residence, and for
inclusion on an architectural tour, for exterior inspection.

Also on the property is a large frame storage and equipment shed. 
A large frame dairy barn, which had stood intact until March of 
1977, was partially destroyed by high winds in that month, which 
caused the collapse of most of the roof and a part of the 
structure. As the remains constitute a public safety hazzard, the 
structure was recently removed from the site. The foundation has 
been left exposed for interpretive purposes.
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The Foster-Armstrong House is significant as a late and well-_ 
preserved example of several classic elements of Dutch domestic 
architecture, and for its association with the many commercial 
activities of the Foster and Armstrong families in the Montague 
area of the New Jersey Minisink, from the late 18th century to 
the mid-19th.

V> 
Julius Foster came to the vicinity 40 1791 and purchased the
property on which he built the house, starting with the frame 
section at some time during that decade. Foster was a millwright 
by trade, but his later career shows him to have been familiar 
with a wide variety of domestic and industrial crafts. He had 
undoubtedly adopted traditional Dutch construction techniques as 
a result of his previous residence on Long Island, where they 
were commonplace. Many of the Dutch details in the house, such 
as the gambrel roof with flared eaves, the exposed back of the 
large end chimney, and the corner fireplaces in the bedrooms, are 
unusual for the area at that late date.

James B. Armstrong migrated to Montague in the early 19th century 
and married Foster's daughter in about 1812. At about the same 
time, the large stone kitchen wing was added to the house. 
Foster and Armstrong formed an enduring commercial association 
along with their familial ties. They operated a ferry on the 
Delaware River near their house until about 1835, and entertained 
both passengers and raftsmen who floated logs down the river, 
at their tavern, which Foster had opened in the house as early as 
1789. Other intermittent business enterprises included a general 
store, a blacksmith's shop, a cider press and a distillery. 
Amstrong was a shoemaker, and was the area's postmaster for a time 
Foster continued his career as a miller, operating a sawmill with 
his neighbor Abram Shimer, and later a gristmill.
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By the late 19th century, most of these commercial activities 
had subsided, probably as a result of the disappearance of 
their markets. A bridge constructed from Milford across the 
river in 1890 ended forever the need for a ferry. By the mid 
1880's, lumber rafting on the Delaware was beginning to decline. 
As early as mid-century the Brick House Hotel in nearby Montague 
had become the more important stopping place along the Old Mine 
Road. The commercial functions oriented to the agricultural 
pursuits which continued to predominate in the area were siphoned 
off to the larger and more effective service centers, which grew 
as improved roads and generally better transportation allowed 
farmers to move their goods greater distances.

The Foster-Armstrong family continued to occupy their homestead 
until recently, "reduced" by the march of progress to what they 
doubtless considered the perfectly satisfactory status of 
"ordinary" farmers. Many of the buildings erected during the 
family's brief commercial preeminence stood until the late 19th 
century, and the foundations of some can still be seen today. 
The Foster-Armstrong House is the most substantial and best 
preserved late 18th century farmhouse still standing between 
Montague and the New York State line. It reveals with almost 
textbook clarity many of the elements characteristic of the 
Dutch style of house building. As the last remnant of the family's 
commercial activity, it is an architectural document, linking the 
area's sleepy present with its livelier past.
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Snell, James P. (Compiler) History of Sussex and Warren
Counties, New Jersey. Philadelphia, Everts and Peck, 1881. 
pp. 364-369.
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The Foster-Armstrong House is located on United States Army Corps 
of Engineers tract #11220-1, which includes a total of 14.27 
acres. The boundary of the nominated portion of this property 
begins at Point A, where the tract line between tracts #11220-1 
and 11221 meets the northwestern edge of the right of way of 
N.J. 521. From this point, the boundary extends to the north­ 
west, following the above-mentioned tract line, for 250' to 
Point B. From this point, the boundary turns to the southwest, 
still following the above-mentioned tract line, and extending 
beyond it, into the interior of tract #11220-1, for a total of 
300' (B-C) to Point C. From this point, the boundary turns to 
the southeast and extends for 230' to Point D., on the N.J. 521 
right of way for approximately 400' back to point A.


